

Contents

1 General	2
2 Purchase orders, delivery, transfer of risk	2
3 Delivery quantities, delivery dates and deadlines	2
4 Default, compensation for default	3
5 Quality and documentation	3
6 Prices, packaging	4
7 Terms of payment	4
8 Retention of title, ownership of tools, molds, and design documents	5
9 Warranty	5
10 Product liability, indemnification, liability insurance cover	6
11 Customs and export controls	6
12 Force majeure	7
13 Secrecy	7
14 Intellectual property, industrial property rights	7
15 Information security	7
16 Data storage	8
17 Due diligence in the supply chain	8
18 Supplier Code of Conduct	8
19 Severability clause	8
20 Place of jurisdiction, applicable law	8



1 GENERAL

- 1. These Terms and Conditions of Purchase apply to all companies of the ODU Group and to all contracts concluded by a company of the ODU Group as the Buyer or Purchaser. Our purchases, purchase orders, and other legal acts within the scope of our business operations are exclusively subject to the following Terms and Conditions of Purchase in their applicable version. This document is available at https://odu-connectors.com/purchasing/. Any deviating agreements to the contract and to these Terms and Conditions of Purchase must be placed in writing. The same applies to any collateral agreements. Any special agreements shall only apply to those purchase orders for which they have been agreed in each case.
- 2. The Supplier's general terms and conditions shall not become part of the contract. Their validity is hereby rejected. They shall also not apply even if the goods are accepted or payment for deliveries is rendered without any further explicit rejection of the Supplier's terms and conditions.
- 3. Any rights to which ODU is entitled in accordance with the statutory provisions, which exceed the scope of these Terms and Conditions of Purchase, shall remain unaffected.

2 PURCHASE ORDERS, DELIVERY, TRANSFER OF RISK

- 1. Quotations submitted by the Supplier shall be binding for at least twelve months with regard to the specified performance and the quoted prices.
- 2. In each case, our purchase order must be confirmed in writing by the Supplier, including confirmation of the prices and delivery times. If we do not receive a written order confirmation within eight days of the order date, we shall no longer be bound to honor our purchase order. Any changes or additions made to our purchase order shall require our written consent to be legally effective. In particular, this applies to any changes to the agreed prices and delivery deadlines, as well as to any deviations from the binding documents specifying the goods' dimensions, materials, etc. We shall not be held liable in case of obvious errors and/or spelling and/or calculation errors

If the order confirmation deviates from the purchase order, the Supplier shall clearly indicate this in the order confirmation and describe the respective deviations. We shall only be bound to honor a deviating purchase order if we have expressly agreed to do so in the individual case. Our unconditional acceptance of deliveries or services as well as payments shall not constitute our consent to the same.

3. The scope of the Supplier's performance obligation shall be based on the specifications and performance descriptions provided at the time of conclusion of the contract or, in the absence thereof, on the information provided via the Supplier's quotations, brochures, and websites.

In cases of doubt, all notes and confirmations issued by the Supplier shall be deemed guaranteed product descriptions and warranties with regard to the product's characteristics. The statements made in promotional materials, manuals, catalogues, and price lists shall also constitute agreements on specific product characteristics. The same applies to all drawings, figures, dimensions, weights and other performance data provided by the Supplier.

The Supplier is not authorized to make technical changes or changes to the product's function, form, color or weight without our prior written consent, unless such changes constitute an adaptation of the product to the technological state of the art. In the latter case, we shall be informed of the changes immediately and in detail.

3 DELIVERY QUANTITIES, DELIVERY DATES AND DEADLINES

1. At any time, we reserve the right to reject any over-deliveries, under-deliveries or partial deliveries, as well as partial performance by the Supplier, which have not been agreed in advance, and to return them at the Supplier's expense and risk.



- 2. The delivery date specified by ODU in the purchase order or delivery call-offs is binding. The delivery date means the date on which the goods must arrive at the ODU location specified in the purchase order or delivery call-off. If, due to the agreed terms and conditions of delivery in accordance with INCOTERMS, ODU is required to arrange collection of the product, the Supplier shall give notice of the goods shipment in good time on behalf of ODU and in accordance with the instructions of the forwarding agent specified by ODU. Early deliveries are only permitted after prior consultation and shall require our written confirmation.
- 3. We are entitled to terminate the respective individual contracts with the Supplier if, due to circumstances arising after the conclusion of the business transaction, the delivery or service to be provided by the Supplier is no longer of value to us. In such cases, the Supplier shall be reimbursed by us for the reasonable, previously incurred expenses associated with its expectation of performing the individual contract.
- 4. Should it become apparent to the Supplier that the agreed delivery date can no longer be adhered to, the Supplier shall notify ODU immediately in writing, stating both the reasons for and the expected duration of the delay. The Supplier shall explain the reasons for the delay in a reasonable manner by submitting verifiable documents.
- 5. In the case of delays or hindrances due to force majeure, the Supplier shall only be freed from its delivery obligations if it informs us of such circumstances without delay. Furthermore, the Supplier shall only be freed from said obligations if neither the Supplier nor its subcontractors are responsible for the circumstances in question.

4 DEFAULT, COMPENSATION FOR DEFAULT

- 1. If the date that serves as the delivery deadline can be determined on the basis of the contract, the Supplier shall automatically be in default after that date without the need for a reminder from ODU. If the Supplier is responsible for non-compliance with the agreed deadlines and dates or is in default, we shall be entitled to compensation for the delay in the amount of 0.5% of the delivery value per calendar week or part thereof, but not more than 5% of the total value of the delivery.
- 2. ODU reserves the right to assert further legal rights (in particular, withdrawal from the contract and compensation claims for damages). The Supplier is entitled to prove that either no damages or a lesser amount of damages were incurred as a result of the delay.

5 QUALITY AND DOCUMENTATION

- 1. All deliveries and services provided by the Supplier shall comply with the product-specific and/or service-specific specifications, standards, and quality requirements as well as the scientific and technological state of the art as communicated by the Purchaser or its customers. Furthermore, said deliveries and services shall be suitable for their intended use. The Supplier's deliveries and services shall also meet all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
- 2. All changes to the delivery items and all product-relevant changes in the process chain shall be recorded in a set of product lifecycle management (PLM) documentation. Any changes to drawings, approvals for deviations, process-related changes, changes to test methods and test frequencies, as well as any changes to suppliers, vendor parts, and operating materials, among other things, shall also be documented in this PLM documentation. The PLM documentation shall be disclosed to us upon request.
- 3. The Supplier shall operate and maintain a quality management system (e.g., in accordance with DIN EN ISO 9001).



- 4. The consistent implementation of a "zero-defect strategy" by the Supplier is deemed agreed by the Parties. Should we identify any defects in the deliveries, we will inform the Supplier accordingly without delay. Within 24 hours of receiving such notification, the Supplier shall send us its initial or completed analysis reports with regard to the defects. The Supplier shall send us a completed 8D report or a comparable document no later than 10 business days after receipt of a defect notification.
- 5. Suppliers of products intended for the automotive sector shall enter the relevant material data into the "IMDS" (International Material Data System). In addition, the Supplier must be certified and operate in accordance with the IATF 16949 standard.
- 6. Suppliers of products intended for the automotive and medical sectors shall obtain and maintain all necessary certifications that are mandatory or commonly required in these sectors.

6 PRICES, PACKAGING

- 1. The prices stated in the purchase order are binding and include all packaging, customs, and transport costs; they are analogous to INCOTERMS 2020 and apply "free domicile" DDP including packaging to the order address specified by ODU, unless otherwise agreed in writing. Insofar as the return of the used packaging has been agreed with the Supplier, all delivery papers shall be clearly marked accordingly. In the absence of such labeling, we will dispose of or return the packaging at the Supplier's expense. In this case, the Supplier's shall no longer be entitled to demand the return of the packaging. In the case of reusable and recyclable packaging, the return transport as well as its ongoing cleaning, maintenance, and replacement in the event of wear and tear or loss shall be at the Supplier's expense. Furthermore, the requirements of the "Shipping Instructions for suppliers" shall apply: https://odu-connectors.com/purchasing/.
- 2. The agreed prices are binding maximum prices. Subsequent cost increases due to changes to collective agreements, material surcharges, changes to customs duties, freight charges, fees or other levies or changes in the currency parity shall not entitle the Supplier to adjust the agreed prices. Subsequent price reductions shall be taken into account to the extent that the purchase order has not yet been executed.
- 3. A valid shipping notice shall be sent with each shipment. This shall be sent to us separately by post or fax on the day the goods are dispatched, irrespective of the dispatch method and the invoicing process. The invoice shall not constitute a shipping notice.
- Furthermore, each delivery shall be accompanied by delivery notes (as a single copy) stating our part number, the order date, the customs tariff number, the country of origin as well as our material, device or type designation.
- 4. Any additional costs incurred due to the need to shorten transport times in order to meet delivery deadlines shall be borne by the Supplier. The Supplier shall be responsible for any damage resulting from the use of inadequate packaging.

7 TERMS OF PAYMENT

1. Invoices shall be sent to us separately in text form (as a single copy) after dispatch of the goods. They shall contain the information required for invoice verification, i.e., our material, device or type designation, the delivery note numbers, marks, numbers and the type of packaging, the number of items invoiced (each type shall be listed separately), the gross and net weight, the order date as well as our order number. If the invoice does not contain the required information – in particular, the part number and the order date – the payment period shall not begin until we have received a valid invoice.



- 2. Payment will be made following receipt of the goods in full and of a valid invoice. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, payment shall be made within 14 days less 3% discount, or net within 90 days. Payment shall be dependent on proper delivery and correctly calculated prices. In the event of any default in payment, our monetary debt to the Supplier shall bear interest at the ECB's base interest rate.
- 3. The Purchaser is entitled to set off claims that are due or not yet due, as well as future claims to which it or a company affiliated with it is entitled, irrespective of the legal basis and legal relationship, against claims that are due or not yet due as well as future claims of the Supplier and/or its affiliated companies. The Purchaser is entitled to withhold due payments as long as the Purchaser still has outstanding claims against the Supplier due to incomplete or defective deliveries or services.
- 4. The assignment of any claims against us to third parties shall require our prior written consent.

8 RETENTION OF TITLE, OWNERSHIP OF TOOLS, MOLDS, AND DESIGN DOCUMENTS

- 1. Reservation of title by the Supplier shall only become part of the contract if said reservation of title shall expire upon payment of the agreed price for the reserved goods and if we are authorized to resell them and to subject them to further processing. There shall be no reservation of title exceeding this scope.
- 2. Machines, tools, molds, design documents and the like that have been manufactured in whole or in part at our expense shall become our unencumbered, exclusive property from the time of their manufacture. They shall be carefully stored, maintained, and repaired by the Supplier to the extent that they can be used at any time. We shall be entitled to demand the return of the above-mentioned molds, tools and the like at any time.

9 WARRANTY

- 1. Our obligation to inspect the delivered goods and to give notice of defects within 10 days shall commence upon receipt of the goods at our plant and upon presentation of a valid shipping notice. We shall satisfy our obligation to inspect the goods and give notice of defects in accordance with § 377 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) by performing an incoming goods inspection to check for identifiable external defects. This inspection shall also encompass the delivery documents. Via said inspection we shall verify the number (quantity) and type (identity) of the delivered goods and check them for signs of external transport damage.
- 2. In the event that the goods are defective or lack any of the warranted features, we shall be entitled to assert all statutory claims. We may, within reason and at our discretion, demand supplementary performance, withdraw from the contract, and/or assert compensation claims for damages. In urgent cases or in the event of a delay in the subsequent performance, we shall have the right to remedy any identified defects at the Supplier's expense either at the Supplier's premises or via third parties (substitute performance). A faultless replacement delivery or rectification of the defect shall be provided within five working days at the latest.
- 3. Even minor deviations between the delivered goods' actual properties and the agreed target properties with regard to the external design or function shall trigger our statutory warranty rights.
- 4. If, in the event of subsequent performance, measures are required on site or at the plant to which the goods were delivered as agreed, the Supplier shall carry out the subsequent performance at said location or have it carried out at its own expense. In order to safeguard the manufacturing operation, said subsequent performance shall occur without delay.



5. Unless a longer period is agreed in individual contracts, the statutory warranty period of two years shall apply. Notwithstanding the aforementioned statutory warranty period, a warranty period of five years shall apply to deliveries intended for the automotive sector.

The warranty period shall begin once we have received the goods as well as a valid shipping notice. In the case of capital goods, the warranty period shall commence upon acceptance of the capital goods at their final destination.

In each case, the warranty period shall be extended by the time taken to complete any subsequent rework.

- 6. Each delivery shall be free from defects of title and shall include the unlimited right to utilize the goods and any documentation provided. The Supplier's performance shall be unencumbered by third-party rights (patents, utility models, trademarks, copyrights, etc.). The Supplier shall enable us to carry out, directly or via third parties, repairs or modifications to the delivered goods without infringing any license rights, and to use the Supplier's manufacturing documents without infringing any license rights.
- 7. The Supplier shall include instructions for use or product descriptions with its products. These documents shall be written in the language used during the contract negotiations.

10 PRODUCT LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION, LIABILITY INSURANCE COVER

- 1. If the delivered products undergo further processing by us and if the Supplier is responsible for damages arising due to product liability, it shall indemnify us against any claims for damages asserted by third parties to the extent that the cause of the damages arising due to product liability lies within the Supplier's sphere of control and organization. In cases of tortious liability, however, this shall only apply if the Supplier is at fault.
- 2. The Supplier shall maintain product liability insurance cover and insurance cover for recalls, which shall also cover the relationship between the Supplier and us, whereby the maximum insured sum shall be doubled to at least € 2,000,000 per claim for personal injury and for property damage. Upon request, the Supplier shall immediately submit to the Purchaser corresponding proof of the aforementioned insurance cover.

11 CUSTOMS AND EXPORT CONTROLS

- 1. Unless otherwise agreed, the Supplier shall be responsible for export and import procedures and shall procure the documents and information necessary for transport and customs clearance and shall be responsible for arranging customs clearance.
- 2. The Supplier shall check (a) whether the products are included in the Export Control List or Dual-use Regulation pursuant to the German export regulations and, if so, under which export list number they are listed and whether an export license is necessary, and (b) whether they are covered by the U.S. export regulations. If the Supplier's products are covered by the Dual-use Regulation or the U.S. export regulations, the appropriate Export Control Classification Number (ECCN) must be provided. This also applies in the event that an exemption or export license is available. All delivery notes and invoices must clearly indicate the product classification in accordance with the applicable export control regulations. If the Supplier's goods are not covered by the German Export Control List (Annex AL to the Foreign Trade and Payments Ordinance ("Außenwirtschaftsverordnung")) and/or the U.S. Commerce Control List, this information must also be noted on the commercial documents.



12 FORCE MAJEURE

- 1. In cases of force majeure, we shall be released from our obligation to accept delivery of the goods. This includes, but is not limited to, operational disruptions, work stoppages as well as operational restrictions and similar cases which result in reduced consumption.
- 2. In the case of delays or hindrances due to force majeure, the Supplier shall only be freed from its delivery obligations if it informs us of such circumstances without delay. Furthermore, the Supplier shall only be freed from said obligations if neither the Supplier nor its subcontractors are responsible for the circumstances in question.

13 SECRECY

- 1. The Parties shall treat all commercial and technical information, knowledge, data and documents, know-how, calculations, procedures, and processes which are not publicly accessible and which become known to them through their business relationship as business secrets of the other Party. In addition, they shall commit their employees to uphold the same level of confidentiality in writing and shall implement ongoing, appropriate measures to safeguard confidentiality. The same applies to subcontractors and external service providers.
- 2. In all other respects, the provisions on the protection of business (implemented in China via the Anti Unfair Competition Law of the People's Republic of China, revised in March 2021, and Regulations on the Protection of Trade Secrets (Draft for Soliciting Opinions) in September 2020) as well as the agreements reached via non-disclosure agreements shall apply to the handling of business secrets.

14 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

We reserve ownership of – and the copyright to – all design-related and other documents such as drawings, standards sheets, print templates, models, samples, etc., which we have provided to the Supplier for the purpose of the contractual performance. These documents may not be made accessible to third parties without our express written consent. Any use of these documents for purposes other than those specified in the contract is prohibited. Any unauthorized copies of our documents shall be returned to us immediately. The documents shall be returned to us with the remaining delivery at the latest.

Likewise, the goods manufactured in accordance with these documents may not be made available to third parties for inspection or used for advertising purposes without our written consent. In the event that the Supplier violates the above conditions, it shall pay us damages; furthermore, we shall be entitled to withdraw from the contract in whole or in part and without owing the Supplier compensation.

15 INFORMATION SECURITY

The Supplier shall take appropriate organizational and technical measures to ensure the confidentiality, authenticity, integrity, and availability of the Supplier's operations as well as its deliveries and services. Said measures shall correspond to the industry standard and include an appropriate information security management system in accordance with the established standards, such as ISO/IEC 27001 or IEC 62443 (as applicable).

The Supplier shall inform us without undue delay of any safety-relevant incidents which have occurred or are suspected to have occurred and which affect the Supplier's operations or its deliveries or services, if and to the extent that we are actually or probably materially affected thereby.



16 DATA STORAGE

In accordance with the regulations set forth in the General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR") and the German Federal Data Protection Act ("BDSG"), we hereby inform you that we have stored your data in our EDP system for the purpose of business processing.

We take the protection of personal data very seriously. Therefore, we process personal data in accordance with the applicable legislation governing personal data protection and data security.

In the context of our collaboration with suppliers, we process the personal data of our contacts at our suppliers, as well as that of interested parties, our sales partners, and other partners in accordance with the applicable statutory regulations.

17 DUE DILIGENCE IN THE SUPPLY CHAIN

The Supplier shall comply with all statutory requirements regarding due diligence in the supply chain and, in particular, ODU (Shanghai) Connectors Manufacturing Co., Ltd is a German company, therefore, in some cases, the supplier may also be required to comply with the provisions of the German Supply Chain Due Diligence Act ("Lieferkettensorgfaltspflichtengesetz", "LkSG"). But ODU (Shanghai) will inform and remind the supplier the relevant legal risks in advance if it's applicable. Furthermore, it shall support our efforts to maintain supply chain security to the best of its ability and shall instruct and obligate its subcontractors accordingly.

18 SUPPLIER CODE OF CONDUCT

The Supplier shall comply with the obligations set forth in ODU's "Supplier Code of Conduct". This document is available at: https://odu-connectors.com/purchasing/

Furthermore, the Supplier shall oblige its subcontractors accordingly.

19 SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

Should any parts of the purchase contract or these Terms and Conditions of Purchase be or become invalid, the remaining provisions shall remain unaffected. In the event that the Supplier's terms and conditions of sale deviate from these Terms and Conditions of Purchase, the latter shall take precedence.

20 PLACE OF JURISDICTION, APPLICABLE LAW

The place of performance for deliveries and payments is Shanghai, which is also the place of jurisdiction. We are also entitled to sue the Supplier at its place of business. The law of the People's Republic of China shall apply shall apply. The UN Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods shall not apply.